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STATE OF OHIO )
| ) SS. 57100
COUNTY OF CUYAHOGA ) ‘

COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

PATRICK J. CONROY,
ADMINISTRATOR OF THE
ESTATE OF ROBERT E.
CONROY,

Plaintiffs,

Ccase No. 246550
Judge Sweeney

vs.

JEFFREY R. BECK, D.O.,
et al.,

pefendants.

Telephone deposition of BRUCE DAVID
JANIAK, M.D., a witness herein, talled Dby the
pilaintiffs as if upon Cross Examination under the
ohio Rules of Civil Procedure, taken before me,
the undersigned, Philip H. Gaines, a Notary Public
in and for the State of Ohio, pursuant to Notice
and stipulations of counsel as hereinafter set
forth, at the Toledo Hogpital Emergency Center
conference Room, Toledo, Ohioc, on Thursday,

December 22, 1994, commencing at 2:00 p.m..
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Fm;PPEARANCES:

Oon behalf of the Plaintiffs:

SPANGENBURG, SHIBLEY, TRACI, LANCIONE

& LIBER

By: Ellen Simon Sacks
2400 National City Center
Cleveland, OH 44114-3062
(216) 696-3232

Oon behalf of Defendant Jeffrey R. Beck,
D.O0.:

REMINGER & REMIRGER

By: Stephen E. Walters
113 St. Clair Building
Cleveland, OH 44114-1273
(216) 687-1311

on behalf of Defendant Fairview General
Hospital:

ARTER & HADDEN

By: Beth Whitmore

1100 Huntington Building
925 Euclid Avenue
Ctleveland, OH 44115-1475
(216) 696-4147
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BRUCE DAVID JANIAK, M.D.,

being first duly sworn as hereinafter certified,

was deposed and testified as follows:

BY

MS.

CROSS EXAMINATION
SACKS:
Doctor, can you please state your full
name?
Bruce David Janiak.
Your address?
Home or office, which one?
It doesn’'t matter.
Office is 2142 North Cove Boulevardf
Toledo, Ohio, 43606.
Doctor, I‘'m not in front of you so I can‘t
hand you a copy of your CV, but I was
wondering i1f you could identify your
current copy of your CV for the record. Do
you have one there?
It's in the other office. I can get one in
about twenty seconds if you want to wait
while I do it.
Maybe we can just do that at the conclusion
of the deposition. I just would like ta

have a current copy of your CV identified

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIOR ST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
(419) 2434251
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as Exhibit 1, if that’'s okay with everyone.
MR, WALTERS: We can agree to do
that, Ellen, and just attach 1t to the
depo, okay?
MS. SACKS: All right. I want
to make sure I have the most current
copy and if you want to attach it to
the depo that’s fine.
MR. WALTERS: that‘s fine.
okay, Doctor, you have that in your office
and you can get that?
Yes, right, Will do.
Where are you working? ' -
Well, at the Toledeo Hosplital Emergency
Department.
Your position there?
Chairman of the Department Of Emergency
Medicine.
Wwhat are your responsibilities?
My responsibility is to make sure that the
department ls appropriately staffed, that
gquality standards are maintained, and
patient satisfaction issues are addreseed,

and to participate in helping the

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317N, SUPERIOR ST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604.1472
(416) 2434251
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department grow and making the institution
successful, but all of that is subservient
to doing quality emergency care for all the
patients that present.

How much time do you spend directly with
patients here, that is seeing patients?

I have to give you an average. I would sBay
in the last six months probably a minimunm
of twehty to a maximum of twenty-six hours
a week.

And the remainder of the week work hours
are administrative?

Well, some of it is administrative. Some
of it 1is preparing lectures for grand
rounds. Some of it is spendling time
one-on-one with residents. §Some of it is
just doing medical reviews and chart
reviews because that’s part of the guallty
igsue. Then some is just strictly
administrative such as developing & hudget
for the purchase of a new piece of
equipment for instance.

I want to ask you some guestions about your

work as an expert witness.

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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Go ahead.

Can you tell me approximately how many
times you have reviewed cases, that is
medical/legal cases?

Correct. I would have to say now 1in taking
a closer look at it since I first startaed
back in the mid 1970’'s I would say
somewhere between 150, maybe 175 total
cases.

How many in the last year or two?

In the last two yvears I think gomewhere
between fifteen and eighteen would be
pretty close.

You said about fifteen to eighteen?

In the year and a half to two years. I
can’'t tell you exactly, but that’s pretty
close.

So that’s not per year, that’s over about
the last two years?

Well, yeah, yvear and a half to two years,
and the reason for that is it has to do
with my board service and sort of taking a
small hiatus there.

What about in the last four years?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. UPERIOR ST.  TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
(419) 2434251
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I would guess fifty to sixty.

What percentage of those cases have been on
behalf of the defense?

It would be fairly close to 90 percent with
the trend being closer to 85 percent in the
last two years.

8o you said about fifty to sixty I believe
in the last four years, was that your last
answer?

Yes, ma‘am.

And, I'm sorry, did you say about B5
percent on behalf of the defense?

That's correct within the last two years. "
1t wae closer to 90 percent four years ago.
Have you ever testified for or been
involved in a case with Mr. Walters before?
I don‘t believe 80, no.

How about any member of his law firm?

Yes.

Would ycu tell me about that, please?

I have reviewed I would say six cases in
the last ten or twelve years for Reminger &
Reminger.

Six cases in the last ten or twelve years

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIOR 8T. 'TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-14T2
(410) 243-425]
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did you say?
Right.
How did you get into the consulting
business?
MS. WHITMORE: Objection.
No, 1 don’'t remember ten years age or
twenty years ago, but I know it had to have
been because a local attorney contacted me,
because I don’t think I would have thought
to do that, and it was actually 2
plaintiif’'s attorney the first case. I
would have to assume after that that all
other contacts from attorneys were by word -~
of mouth.
Do you know for example how the law firm of
Reminger & Reminger happened to'contact
you?
Actually, no, I don't.
Can you tell me who your insurance carrier
ing? |
Mine?
MR. WALTERS: objection, but go
ahead, Doctor.

MS. WHITMORE: Objection.

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC,
317N, BUPERIOR ST.  TOLEDO, OHIO 436041472
(419) 2434251
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My carrier is PIE.
How long have they been your carrier?
1 would guess eight to ten Years.
Have you ever testified for PIE?
Yes, I have.
How many?
MR. WALTERS: Well, and I don't
know that PIE is not involved in this
case. I don‘'t know where we’'re going
with this.
MS. SACKS: Just asking a
gquestion.
MR. WALTERS: All right, go
ahead.
Tell me?
1 would say if taking into account the fact
that they have offices in several states
that I probably have reviewed fifteen cases
for PIE over the years.
You have reviewed, I'm sorry?
Approximately fifteen cases over the years.
Okay, my speaker phone is not very good in
here and the one I intended to use iB in a

room that is filled with people that I

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N.BUPERIORST. ‘TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
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coulidn’t ask to leave. So I'm sorry that I
keep having to ask you to repeat some
things here.

That i8 no problem at all because this is
the first time ever this speaker phone has
worked.

Okay, so you understand?

Yes.

Can you tell me how many cases you are
involved in right now that are pending,
that you are either reviewing or have

written a report on?

1 understand and I would say it’s probably -

twenty different cases.

Do you generally have about twenty going at
a time?

I think that’'s pretty fair., Every once in
a while you go to your files and find out
that many of them have been settled long
ago and you never found out about it. 8o
keeping that in mind I would say twenty.
About how much time a week do you spend in
connection with your consulting work on

these cases?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N.SUPERIORST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
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I probably, maybe a couple of hours a weekx
on average.

How do you charge?

By the hour.

What do you charge per hour?

$150.

What about for testimony?

Same for testimony and same for trial. The
only expenses I look for in terms of time
are when I have to drive locally, but if I
fly I don’t charge for that time unless

it‘’s &4 turbo prop.

How much time did you spend, have you spent’

all together on this case?

I could tell you that in just a minute,
maybe less than a minute. Hang on.

Okay, sure,

Somewhere between five and seven hours.
Can you tell me how you spent that five to
seven hours?

Sure, reading the mediceal records.

About how long did that take?

Somewhere in the range of five to six.

Five to six hours?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIOR ST.  TOLEDQ, OHIO 43604-1472
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Right, and then the rest of the time would
be just meeting with the attorney, Mr.
Walters.

wWhat medical records did you review?
Fairview General Hospital’s Emergency
Department record dated -- boy, I can’t
read the date, sorry. Looks like 30
January, ‘8%1. h

Any other medical records that you
reviewed?

And‘that's it.

And have you reviewed any other documents?
Yes, depcsitions,.

What depositions have you -- did you read
them or just flip through them or what?
No, 1 read them and the answers are a
deposition of Sue Ann O’Ceonnor, Jeffrey
Beck, Kathleen Quinn, Chad Murdock.

How long did it take you to review the
depositions?

I don’'t write down the number of minutes,
but I can tell you that the total time was,
let’'s see, one, two, three, just about five

hours total, in that range.

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC,
317 N.SUPERIOR ST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
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So you told me you had spent five to seven
houre all together on the case?

Right.

And was reviewing the depositions part of
that time?

Yes, ma'am.

And when you said reading the medical
records did you include the depositions in
that?

No.

Okay, 80 let me try to go through that
again. You said you read the medical
records?

Correct.

And you said that, I wrote down that you
said that that took five to six hours?

No, no, I'm sorry.

That’s wrong?

Must have misunderstood. 1 said the total
amount of time I spent was five to seven
and of that around five was the depositions
and the remalnder was the medical records
and the meeting with Mr. Walters.

Okay, was there anything else that you

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIORST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
(610) 243-4251
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reviewed?

No.

Did you meet with Mr. Walters today?
Yes.

Did you meet with anycne else?

Nol

Did you meet at all with Miss Woodford?

Well, I met Miss Woodford, but I didn’t

meet with Miss Woodford. She wasn't
when I had the meeting.

MS., WHITMORE: Whitmore.

here

Did you discuss this case with her at all?

Whitmore 18 the name she says.
Sorry, Whitmore.

and, I'm sorry, I missed your last
gquestion.

Did you discuss the case with her at

Did not.

all?

You did discuss the case with Mr, Walters?

Yes, 1 did.
On how many occasions?

Well, I know today. I would imagine.

and 1

don’t have any direct memory, we must have

had a conversation on the telephone,

but I

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. BUPERIOR ST.  TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1422
(410} 2434251
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don't have a record of it and I can’t tell

you when that was. I just have a vague

memory of doing so.

8o the conversation, the one and only

conversation that you remember was one

which you had today before this deposition,

is that right?

Yeah.

1 assume you had some contact in order for

you to get the case?

Oh, of course, right.

You don’t remember that?

Well, that contact was with a different

attorney in the same firm whose name was

Mr. Marmarcs, Pete Marmaros.

Oh, Pete Marmaros.

Unless it’s Marmaros and I have accented the

wrong syllable.

and do you remember speaking to him about

the case?

Yes.

Can you tell me what you recall about that?
MR. WALTERS: Walt one second.

Objection, and I would represent to

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIORBT. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604.1472
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you that that’'s attorney work product,
Ellen. You can certainly ask him what
his opinions are.

MS. SACKS: That’'s a new
objection to me.

MR. WALTERS: Well, I don’'t know
that it’'s a new objection. I don'ﬁ
know that I’ve ever heard anybody é&k
what they’ve discussed with cpposing,

with counsel before.

MS. SACKS: Really?

MR. WALTERS: Yes. I mean 1
don't -~ -
MS. SACKS: My experts are

always asked that, Steve.
MR. WALTERS: i mean you were
fine to ask it. I'll let him answer

it, but he’ll answer it over my

objection.
MS. SACKS: Okay.
MR. WALTERS: I don’‘’t care. Go

ahead, Doctor.

Do you remember your conversation with Mr.

Marmaros about the case?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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The answer is no. I have a note on the
file here that says I did have such a
conversation. The only thing I could tell
you is that he must have told me that there
was such a case and ocutlined it, but I
don’t remember it.

Okay, and what about your conversation %ith
Mr. Walters today, what do you recall about
that?

That we discussed the case from our
staﬁdpoint on what I felt about the
appropriateness of the gvaluation by Dr.
Beck of Mr, Conrovy. -
Can you tell me about that in some more
detail, please?

sure. I told him that I thought Dr. Beck
met the standard of care in the way he
apprecached the case of Mr. Conroy and I
told him that I thought that he, that I did
not expect him to be responsible for
actually arranging and being sure that the
patient had a specific appointment at a
specific time with a physician in that, and

the way Dr. Beck dealt with it was within

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC,
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the standard of care.

I could not hear the last comment that you
made.

I said the way Dr. Beck dealt with this
case met the standard of care.

The way that he dealt with the case?
Correct.

Okay, anything else?

Boy, it was a pretty general conversation.
Hang on a second. Oh, yes, I told him that
I thought that it was appropriate that he

documented a physical examination on a

patient with psychiatric problems, that was |

good, and I told him that I thought that
the medication that the patient was sent
home on was more of an anti-anxiety agent
and that was perfectly fine because
anti-depressants would not take effect
within the ghort time frame that he was to
have a psychiatric appointment anyhow.
Because anti what would not take effect?
Anti-depressants.

Okay, and this was an anti-anxiety

medication?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N, SUPERIOR BT. TOLEDO, OHIO 430041472
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Q.
A.

Q.

Yeah, more so. That’'s its predominant
effect.

Okay, anything else?

That‘s all I remember.

And I guess in a way you're telling me what
your opinions are as well?

I think that’s what we‘re doing, yeah.
Went over your opinions with Mr. Walters?
I think that’'s, yeah, see, you know how to
say this better than I do.

Well, I don’t think so, Dr. Janiak.

Did Mr. Walters tell you anything in

particular, anything specific? 7

No. I mean the only thing we talked about
that was very specific was whether or not
you were going to call us or he was going
to call you when we started this
deposition. Otherwise, we just talked as I
gsaid about my opinions.

Let me make sure that I understand your
opinions then. I think you wrote a report.
Maybe we can have that report marked as
Exhibit 2. Do you have a copy of your

report, Doctor?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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Yes, I do.
Before 1 get into your opinions again I
want to ask you just a few questions abdut
the report.
All right, can I ask you, do you want me to
nave a copy of this given to the -- we'll
do that then.

MR. WALTERS: We'll mark it at

the end, yes.
Okay, go ahead.
There’'s a report that‘s written to Mr.
Abbarno?
That’'s correct.
Do you know who he i8?
I must have had a phone conversation with
him to, but I don’t know who he is.
You have a reference here dated March the
ist, 1994, and that’'s in the report that
you have in front of you, is that right?
Ne, it is not. Hold on.
Did you write more than one report?
No, I didn‘t. I‘m just having trouble with
the date though.

I've got one dated February 22nd, but

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N, SUPERIOR 5T. 'TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
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I don't have one dated March the 1lst. I
don’t understand why that’s, why that
happened, because I only did one.
But the report that’s dated February 22nd,
is marked as Exhibit 2, maybe you can réad
that to me?
f sure will. "Dear Mr. Abbarno, I have
reviewed the materials you have sent me
regarding this particular case. I have
especially focused on the emergency
department records of January 30th, 1991.

"Mr., Conroy came in to the emsrgency
department with a history of depression.
The history that was taken by Dr. Beck was
adeguate as was the physical examination.
Dr. Beck specifically asked gquestions with
regards to suicide and determined that the
patient was, guote, not actively suicidal,
unguote. This is8 a perfectly reasonable
and appropriate approach for an emergency
physician to take and certainly is within
the standard of care.

"Based on these findings the

outpatient referral was also completely

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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appropriate. ©Dr. Beck started the patient
on Buspar, 5 milligrams, three times a day,
but indicated most appropriately to the
patient that this medication would not take
effect immediately.

"Finally, Dr. Beck indicated in his
referral that the patient should call Dr.
Murdock as soon as possible for follow-up.
This was alsoc reascnable and approprliate in
viey of the history and physical findings.

"In summary, I find absolutely no
deviation from the standard of care on the
part of Dr. Beck. His evaluation,
treatment and recommendations were
completely within the standard of care for
an emergency physician. Sincerely, Bruce
Janiak."

Doctor, I wanted to ask you in your report
where you said Dr. Beck specifically asked
guestions with regard tec sulcide?

Right.

What questions did he ask?

When I said that he specifically asked

guestions I was referring to the fact that

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIOR ST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
(419) 2434251

22



10

11

12

13

14

15

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

he noted that the.patient was not actively
gsuicidal. The inference is that you must
ask the patient guestions about suicide in
order to be able to state that you’'re not
actively suicidal. 5So you are technically
correct in that there is no documented
gquestion, but there is a documented answer.
What do you think in your opinion is the
appropriate standard of care for an
emergency room physician with respect to
assessment of a suicide risk?

The emergency physician needs to do a
history which is appropriate to that, in -
other words ask guestions with regards to
the patient’s feelings, needs to do a
physical examination, and then needs to
make a judgment as to the appropriate
disposition for that patient.

You sBaid needs to do a history and needs to
do a physical and then you said make a
judgment?

That is correct.

Isn‘t that the same thing that you do with

any patlent?

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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Absolutely.

So what specifically do you do with a
patient with depression who may be a
suicide risk?

Well, you ask appropriate guestions andé
those guestlions are -~

I‘'d likxe sBome more detall relating to tﬁe
case.

Sure. How do you feel. Tell me your
story.

Okay, what else?

And when the patlent tells you the story --
well, I can't tell you what else because -
everything, all the what elses, derive from
the first answer, but in =~-

There's no basic or standard type of
questioning that is supposed to be done in
order to determine whether or not someone
is a high suicide risk or not?

Except for the question do you feel
Buicidal and that could be worded several
different ways, or do you want to kill
yourself, do you feel like killing vourself

now.

r

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
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Anything else?

No, that‘s really it. Everything else is
not standard.

And do you feel like killing yourself now,
are you sulcidal?

Well, those are the topics. The wording
could be somewhat different and still be
acceptable. There is no standard wording
which is absolute.

Anything else that you can tell me about in
terms of what an emergency room physician,

emergency medical physician is gupposed to

do in a situation where a patient is .

depresged and an assessment needs to be
made regarding suicide?

No, because all of the other things that
one would do are really branches that
depend on the answers to the first
gquestions and what judgment you make with
regard to the risk.

Is there anything the physician is supposed
to do other than talk to the patient?

Well, certainly, the physical examination

ag I indicated before.
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24 Q.

What is so important about the physical
examination?

Every time you see a patient with a
psychiatric problem you must have at least
a cursory evaluation for the possibility
that this is a physical problem and not a
mental proklem.

Okay, you’‘re making a determination whether
it‘s medical or psychiatric?

That is correct.

Organic versus psychiatric?

Yes, correct.

Anything else the emergency room physician -’

is supposed to do?

Well, certainly --

Not generally, but specifically in a case
like this?

Sure. Well, no. No, I guess the answer is
no because you would always have a
diagnosis and a plan. So that would be for
any patient.

So the diagnosis was depression?

Correct.

You agree with the diagnosis?
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Yes.
Is that the same diagnosis you believe you
would have made based on what's presented
in the record?

MR. WALTERS: | Objection.

Go ahead, Doctoar.

Yes, I agree. I think I would have made
the same diagnosis.
And then you said that the next thing the
doctor has to do is to exercise his
judgment and come up with a plan?

Right.

Do you agree with the plan in this case? "

Yes.

What was the plan?

The plan was to place the patient on
medication, although the patient was
notified that it was not expected to have a
miraculous instantaneous effect, and then
aleo to arrange for follow-up to a
psychiatrist, and both of those things were
done.

In your emergency setting at your hospital

do your emergency room physicians treat
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peychiatric patients or are they seen by a
psychiatrist?

we, that is the emergency physicians, Bee
the patients first.

We spoke to another doctor earlier this
week who said at their hospital the
psychiatrist saw the psychiatric patients.
That‘s why I thought it was more standard
that the emergency room physician would see
the patient and then if needed would call a
psychiatrist.

You are exactly correct.

Now, would you have any ¢riticism in a case’ |

l1ike this if the emergency room physician
would have called the psychiatrist on call?
No.

That would be okay?

Yes.

That would have been an okay thing to do?
Correct.

What about calling the family? Do you have
gny feelings about or opinibns about
whether or not any family members should

have been contacted?
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Well, I would not have a criticism 1f the
family were contacted, making an assumption
that that was okay with the patient. 1
would have to assume that.

If it was okay with the patient?

Yes.

Then you think that would be ncceptnblef

1 would not have a critlicism, |
You would not have a criticism?

Right.

Do you think that a family member should
have been called?

No, I think that’s another judgment. In
this case I didn’'t see any indication that
a family member needed to be contacted.

Why is that?

Because there is no evidence of one of two
possibilities. One is that the patient is
80 confused or mentally disabled that he is
unable to communicate in a reasonable way,
or, two, is that the patient has an organic
impairment that, like alcoholism or heavy
alcohol use, that renders him incapable of

making reasonable judgments, and I guess I
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should add, three, the patient, there’s no
documentation at least, that the patient
requested that Dr. Beck call his relatives.
Have you ever heard of the concept of
calling a family member in a situation
where the patient is depressed and may be
puicidal so that it can be a support
mechanism for the patient until they get to
a psychiatrist?
MR. WALTERS: Oobjection.
Go ahead, Doctor.
MS. WHITMORE: Obiection.

Have I ever heard of that happening? The
answer is yes, I have heard of that
happening.
And are you critical of that kind of
conduct?
No, that is something else a physician can
do, but not doing it is not a violation of
the standard. 1It‘'s perfectly reasonable to
not do that.
Well, what is the objective of the plan
when you let a patient go who needs to Bee

a psychiatrist or needs to be treated?
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The objective 18 that the patient will
understand what your instructions are, in
this case call Dr. Murdock ASAP, and
actually carry through with that phone
call, and I believe that the record show
that that happened.

And do you have any criticiems of any of
the doctors who were involved in this case
in any way?

You mean other physicians.

Anybody other than Dr. Beck. I mean do you

have any criticisms of any of the medical

care providers? -

I wag never asked to look at this case from
that viewpoint so I don’'t know. I haven’'t
evaluated it from that viewpolint.

So I take it that you’'re not going to be
offering an opinion regarding any
criticisme of any medical care providers?
You are correct.

Okay, and what about Fairview General
Hospital, de you have any criticisms of any
of their procedures or policles?

I do not.
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Have you treated patients in emergency
rooms who have come in with depression or
where you have diagnosed depression?

Yes. I was going to say I wouldn’t say
I‘ve actually treated them, but I certainly
have diagnosed it.

Diagnosed it, and then you haven't treated
them you said?

I have not, right.

Would a psychiatrist?

Either that or to their family physician
depending on in my judgment what type of
support the patient needs.

Have you ever called the paychiatrist om
call to see a patient because of
depression?

Many times.

And in this hospital or in the hospitals in
which you have worked has there always been
a system where there’s been a pesychiatrist
on cali?

Yes, ma’'am.

So then it would be the psychiatrist’s

decision at that point whether to admit the

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N.SUPERIORST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
(419) 2434253

32



10

11

12

13 Q.

14

i5

16

i A.

18

ig

20

21

22 Q.

23

24

patient or not?

I think the answer to that is somewhat
complex. It technically is the decision of
the psychiatrist or for purposes of
discuesion any potential attending
phyeician who has to rely on the
information given to him or her by the
emergency physician. So In that sense it
is a somewhat joint decision, but the
technical act of admitting and the
responsibility fox the patient rests solely

with the attending physician.

Okay, but it might be, are you saying that - |-

it might be a joint decislion of the
emergency reom doctor, the psychiatrist,
maybe the family physician?

Right, that's always a possibility because
the psychiatrist or family physlcian or
surgeon or whoever may need more
information, ask more guestions, and end up
being a joint type of decision.

In a situation where a patient has been in
an emergency psychiatric setting has bean

diagnosed with depression and the
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psychiatrist, where a patient has been
diagnosed with depression, when do you
think it is appropriate to call the
psychiatrist on call?

That decision is in most cases & judgmental
one which falls on the shoulders of the
emergency physiclan and it is 8o because
except for some Very expiicit pleces of
information, for instance I am going to
xill myself right now, guote/unguote,
absent that it is & judgment the emergency
physician has to make and it’s made based
on the constellation of information
acquired in evaluating the patient.

well, what kind of information would lead
you or in your opinion lead a reasonable
emergency room physician to call the
psychiatrist on call?

When 1 see a patient --

Again, it’'s a judgment call, but I want to
know under what circumstances that judgment
would be exercised in terme of making the
phone call.

MR. WALTERS: . You're asking that
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absent the example he’'s given you
already, 1s that correct? He’s given
you one example already.
THE WITNESS: pid you hear that?
MS. SACKS: Yes. I gquess I'm
not sure I heard it that wgy, but i
heard what he said.
MR. WALTERS: Okay, go ahead}
Doctor.
Then 1’11 give you another example. A
patient comes in who actually has slashed

nis wrist or her wrist deep encugh to

injure the artery. To me that is a rather -

severe message that a patient is guite
disturbed.

Another example would be a patient who
says that they are thinking constantly
about suicide and that they are going to
commit suicide and they don’t really want
te do it and that‘s why they came in to see
a physician because they need help.

Those are two where it‘s pretty clear
that a psychiatrist needs to be called and

of course we call them when we see patients
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like that.

Okay, any other examples you can think of?
Sure, the answer is now a gradation of ways
patients present with an infinite varlety
and judgment has to be exercised. Thatﬂs
the only way I can answer jt.

Judgment has to be exercised as to how to
treat the patient and whether or not to
call a psychiatrist, 1is that fair?

That's right, because we're locking at one
end of the spectrum beling admission to the
psychiatric intensive care unit and the
other end of the spectrum being discharge
without any follow-up whatsoever, and in
between there’s a& lot of gray zones.

Is the purpose of the psychliatric consult
only for purposes of admitting or is it
also for purposes of consultation?

It can be both. In many institutions it's
poth where a psychiatrist will render their
opinion to be additive to that of the
emergency physician or the emergency
physician may simply feel they don’t have

the data or the expertise to make a
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judgment. That happens not just in
psychiatry but of course in every other
disease entity.

Do you know, Doctor, and I don’t know if
this is beyond your field or not, but do

you know whether or not people who suffer

from depression or patients who suffer from

depression are notoriously goecd or bad
about following up on appointments such as
this, following up on things that need to
be done?

MR. WALTERS:

form.

Go ahead, Doctor.

No, 1 think I will tell you that I have
never read a study on that and so I just
don’t know.
Okay, so that may Dbe beyond your expertise
then?
Maybe.
In any event you didn't have any problem
with Mr. Conroy being released with saying
follow up as soon as possible?

No, because now we’'re talking about Mr.

i1l object to the

-
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Conroy. Your question was about
psychiatric patients and I 'don’t know the
data there.

Right.

But I do know that patients who Beem to be
alert and oriented and respond normally’
have an excellent chance of following
through with what you tell them to do.

Are you talking about depressed patients or
are you just talking about generally ag an
emergency room physiclan?

No, I'm talking about, well, I'm talking
both I guess, but depressed patients that -
are alert and oriented and fairly
comfortable, who are thought to be not
actively suicidal, are motivated to come in
to the Emergency Department and are
motivated to follow through, and actually
are I think quite grateful to have accass
to & support system. SO they in my
experience do follow through.

How do you know?

The answer to that is that you do over &

period of years get feedback from your

4
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colleagues in other specialties including
psychiatry as you walk past them in the
hall and say did Mr. Jones, quote/unquote,
gsee you as he was supposed to and the
answer is yes. Or, occasionally, you’ll
even ask a nurse to call a patient and find
out how they’'re doing and the answer seams
toc be yes.

Which leads me to another series of
questions and that is whether or not you've
ever been invoclved in any hospital where
there's been follow-up to see if the
patient did go see who he was supposed to
see or do what he or she was supposed to do
by either having a doctor call or a nurse
call or some sort of procedure where a
follow-up was verified?

The answer is that I’'ve been invelved in
places, including the Toledo Hospital, in
which that is done on a random basis, but
I‘ve never been in an institution where
it's done on a 100 percent basis or even &
50 percent basis for that matter.

But sometimes it might be done if there’s a
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particular concern about a patient for
exanmple?

Correct.

Is that what you mean by random?

That’s correct.

Okay, so0 you really want to make sure tﬁat
Mr. Smith did what he was supposed to dd?
Correct.

okay, and would you call under those
circumstances where there were these
random, I guess what you call random

follow-up was made, would it be with the

physicians to whom the patient was referred’ |

or to the patient or to a family member?

I would say 90 percent of the time it would
be to the patient. 9 percent of the time,
and I obviously don‘t have a study here by
the way, 9 percent of the time it would
probably be to the physician, and 1 percent
of the time it would be to a family member
and the reason for that is that they’'re the
ones who answer the phone when you call.
Have you worked in an emergency department

where there has been any system in place,
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whether formal or informal, of letting the
referring doctors know that these patients
had been referred to you, they were in the
emergency room and they were given your
name, by either leaving part of the recbrd
or any other kind of communication?

Yeah, I think the answver is that in most
places that communication’is done by virtue
of a copy of the emergency record.

where does 1t go?

If the system wWorks correctly the Medical

Records Department would forward & copy to

the attending physician that was identified’ |

as the follow-up physician.

1s that fairly standard as far as you know?
Excellent qguestion. Actually it‘s one I'm
going to wrilte a note about to try to eee
i1f I can figure it out.

T would say that I don’t know. I'm
going to be real honest. I don’t know if
it‘’s a standard so I can't answer,

Okay, but that’s the way it is at your
institution?

Right.
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Are the referrals made to physicians that
are on the staff of the hospital?

That's correct. Mostly that’s true.

Okay, and so would they, would the sheeat
from the emergency room that goes to the
referring doctor, do you know if that w¢uld
pe left in a box or that would be mailed or
how that communication is made, .at leagt in
your hospital?

At this institution it would be either
maiied or faxed depending on & number of

circumstances and how fast the chart was

ready and how soon the doctor needed it. A

Is that done each day?

Yes. Well, I can‘t speak for holidays and
Sundays, but I think lit’s done the rest of
the days of the wesek.

So that‘e a normal routine?

Right.

And you do have scome familiarity with
hospitals outside of your own?

Correct.

From teaching or speaking or whatever, and

do you know if there’s other hospitals that
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have a similar kind of system, that is that
the referring doctors are riotified?

As far as I know that’s what most of the
hospitals in the Toledo area do in
northwest Ohio. You know, I have my

experience with southern Ohio hospitals is

now over ten years old so I can’'t speak for

what they do now.

What do you understand the reason to be for
that communication?

The reason for that communication is that
it is always helpful, well, nothing’s
always, it is frequently helpful for one
physician to know what another physician
thought about a patient because it sets
them off on a, hopefully on the correct
path with regards to that patient’s
evaluation.

Doctor, I want to asgk you a couple of
questions about the medications here.

All right.

Do you prescribe Buspar?

No.

Have you?
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No.

Why not?

I 1imit the medications I use and Buspar is
not on that list. If I want an
anti-anxiety agent for an adult I usually
use Valium. It’s just a personal choice.
Do you prescribe medications to psychiatric
patients who you belleve have a diagnosis
of depression?

Yeah. Not on all of them, but I certainly

have. I‘ve given anti-depressants before,
sure.
I mean if some -- I guess you would have

the view that the psychiatrist should be
prescribing the anti-depressants. I just
didn’t know what your view was on that.
But you have?

Yes, and I also understand the other view,
and I think both views are okay.

Would you have prescribed medication based
on what we know from the chart to Mr.
Cenroy?

All right, you want me to assume that I'm

gseeing Mr. Conroy and I‘ve gotten through
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to the diagnosis and I know he’s goeing to
be calling his doctor as soon as possible?
You know you're giving him a slip saying
call your doctor as soon as pessible.
I understand.
Yes, you know what we know here from this
record.
Okay.

MR. WALTERS: Show my objection.

Go ahead, Doctor.

No, I probably wouldn't have.
You probably would not have prescribed any
medication?
That‘s right.
Because you would think he’'s going to be
goling to a psychiatrist and he needs to go
to a psychiatrist?
Well, I think that’'s part of it. The other
part of it is just personally I don’t like
medicines s0 I try to stay away_frOm them,
period. So no matter what the disease is I
am less likely to prescribe medicines than
sqme of my colleagues,

I want to ask you, Doctor, about Dr. Beck'’'s

GAINES REPORTING SERVICE, INC.
317 N. SUPERIOR ST. TOLEDO, OHIO 43604-1472
(419) 2434251

45



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

plan which is he's got it as part of the
chart here.

Correct.

The patient was started on Buspaxr and that
I believe you have said, and I think i8’

what has been said by others, is an

.anti-anxiety medication?

That's correct.
And then it says that he was told it woﬁld
take two to three weeks for the medicine to
work?
That's what 1t says.
What do you understand that to mean? -
Well, there are a number of psychiatric
medicines that seem to reach their maximal
therapeutic effect after they’'ve been taken
for & couple of weeks, and I think that’'s
all it was. He was trying to indicate to
the patient that he shouldn’t expect much
in the way of a change in the way he feels
just from this.

Therefore, one could infer that’'s also
a reason that you need to see the

psychiatrist because medicine is not goeing
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to cure you.

Well, that medicine wouldn’t cure the
depression anyway, right?

That’'s right.

and you understand that that was made clear
to Mr. Conroy, that he was not glven
medication for depression but he was gi%en
medication for anxiety but it would.také
two to three weeks to work, Or don’t yeou
know?

I tﬁink 1 know he was told it would take

two to three weeks to work. I'm not clear

about exact wording on whether or not what,-’|

1 den’t believe there’s any way for me to
know what Mr. Conroy understood the
medicine would do. So I don‘t --

I1’m not sure that there is either. I Just
wanted to make sure that we were on the
same page here,

3 think we are.

So what you understand is that 1t is I
guess medically or clinically correct that
Buspar would take two to three weeks to

work as a medication?
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As far as I understand. As I said I don’'t
prescribe it myself.

Okay, so what 1t was prescribed for, for
whatever it was prescribed for?

Right.

Ookay, and you don‘t understand that thaf
was prescribed for the depression, correct?
Correct.

Did you say that you read Dr. Murdock’'s’
deposition?

Yes, I did.

and maybe a report by him, a short report,
did you read that?

You know, I think that that's true. Hanhg
on, let me just confirm that. Yep, I do, I
have it. Dated December 1l4th, 19937

I don’‘t have it in front of me, put it’'s a
very short report.

Okay, yes, I have it.

Letter, it's really a letter. Did you
understand from reading Mr. Murdock’s
deposition and that report that he feels
that he should have been called that

evening, that morning actually, he as the
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psychiatrist on call believes that he

should have been called in 'this case?

That’‘s what he said.

And do you have any, can you understand his

perspective?
MR. WALTERS: I object.
Go ahead, Doctor.
MS5. WHITMORE: Objection.

Well, I think I have a very clear
understanding of his objective.
Perspective.

perspective, I'm sorry. Yes, I think I --

You said you have a clear understanding of - |

his perspective?

I think I do.

Okay, is that because you worked with
psychiatrists in emergency psychiatric
settings?

No.

Okay, why is that?

Because I think I work with people and I
understand some things about human nature,
or at least I think I do.

And what d¢o you mean by that?
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I mean when any of us feel we might be in
trouble we tend to look for ways to defend
ourselves.

And do you think that Mr. Murdock did
anything wrong or do you think he was
giving this opinion because he felt that
others may think that or something along
these lines?

Well, I think in answer to your first
question I already said I wasn’t going to
testify about the behavior of Dr. Murdodk
so I'm not sure, you know, what I'm
supposed to say there.

So you don’'t have an opinion as to whether
Dr. Murdock acted negligently?

Not now because I've not been asked to
review it from that standpoint. I haven't
even looked at Mr. Murdock. I just read
the letter.

Have you ever had any conversations with
any psychiatrists in an emergency setting
where maybe it didn’t involve you but
somebody else on your staff In reviewing

the disposition of a patient where
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psychiatrists had gsaid well I think we
should have been called in this case or I
think it would be a good idea to call us in
cases like this, any dialogue of that kind?
Let me think just a moment because that;s
another gecod guestion. Ko, I have to tell
you that I don’t remember having that kind
of issue. I've had psychiatrists say why
did you call me, but I’'ve not had them say
why didn’t you call me.

oh, you‘ve had them say you really didn’t

need to call me in this case?

. Correct.

So sometimes they feel like they’'re being
overused?

1 don’t know if I could --

You're speaking of a specific example?

No, I’'m not thinking of a specific example.
I just am not sure what thelr motivation
would be for that. I don’t know.

Do you go over cases with them at all, like
either, you know, weekly, yearly,
guarterly?

The answer to that is there may have been
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cases that have been presented at our
Emergency Medicine Grand Rounds, but I
personally have not participated in those
particular rounds.
Have you ever, are you aware of the
circumstances in your own experience or in
your position of Chailr of the Department,
where that had a similar to this one where
someone was seen at the emergency room mnd
released and then committed suicide?
Yes.

MR. WALTERS: 1'11 object.

Go ahead.

The answer is yes.
Yes?
Yes.
Are those reviewed internally, those casesg?

MR. WALTERS: Objection.

Go ahead, Doctor.

Yes.
And in any of those situations do you ever
recall any involvement of the psychiatrist?

MR, WALTERS: I‘'m going to

object because I think this ie
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dangerously getting close to what's
protected information, Ellen, under
the Peer Review Statutes in the Ohlo
Revised Code. So I don’t think the
doctor 15 allowed to testify to what
he’'s learned in a peer review meetlng.
MS. SACEKS: I think he can Lf
it’'s not, we're not talking about a
speclfic case or a specific patient.
MR. WALTERS: I'll leave that to
the doctor, but I don’'t think that'’s

true. I don’t think you’'re allowed to

discover information at all from those |

meetings because if you could you
could go a long way in a lot of
different cases of proving different

things based upon peer review.

Maybe I could simplify this by saying that
I am thinking of a specific case and it
happened so long ago that that particular
case was not presented at any conference.
Okay, so you remember a case where somebody
was released and committed suicide, but you

don't remember it being reviewed?
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That is exactly xight.

Am I right?

I don’'t remember it being reviewed in a
formal way. I mean other than knowing
about it within the department, no, there
was no presentation or case discussion. .

I wasn't really asking about peer review or
anything formal frankly. I was just
wondering if you had a circumstance that
was similar or that you knew of where
somebody was released and committed suiclde
and I think you said the answer was Yes,

T did say that.

was that only one time and was that the one
that you were remembering?

Jt’s the only one I can remember.

Okay, and that was gquite a while ago?

As a matter of fact it was probably 1975.

I want to make sure, Doctor, that I have
covered all of your opinions. Do you
believe that you have expressed all the
opinions about the care given to Mr. Conroy
about any other issues in which you intend

to express an opinion?
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MR. WALTERS: I'll object, but
you’'ve had the opportunity to ask him
questions. I don’t know that he’s got
to, that he can exhaust his memory.
But go ahead,

Doctor, as best you can.

No, right now I think you’ve asked me all

the pertinent points.

So in other words you believe that the

history was taken properly?

Yes, ma’am.

Do you believe everyone was contacted who

should have been contacted or interviewed, -

which was Mr. Conroy?

Right.

And you think the history was appropriate,

correct?

Correct.

The judgment was appropriate?

Correct.

And you don't believe that there was

anything more that Dr. Beck should have

done?

No, I don't,
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And I take 1t you don’'t feel that he failed
in any way?
That is correct.
And you don‘t think that there’s anything
more that should have been done in termﬁ of
policy or procedure with respect to the
disposition of the patient?
That is also correct.
By the hospital or the procedures or --
Right, no hospital procedures.

MS. SACKS: Okay, Doctor, I

don’t think I have any other

questions.

We have the tweo
exhibits?
MR. WALTERS: Right, the CV and

the report.

MS. SACKS: 1 and the report
is 2.
MR. WALTERS: Right. I think

that’s what we sald.

THE WITNESS: That's all I
remember.
MS. SACKS: And those will be
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attached to the transcript?

MR. WALTERS: Correct.
THE WITNESS: That’s right.
MS. SACKS: I don‘t know 1if

you want the doctor to read or waive.
MR. WALTERS: He‘ll read it.

MS. SACKS: okay, then I think
we're all set.

(Whereupon, Piaintiff’'s Exhibits 1 and
2 were marked for identification.)
(Whereupon, the deposition was

concluded at 3:05 p.m..)

I, BRUCE DAVID JANIAK, M.D., do hereby' |

certify that I have read the foregoing
transcript of my deposition given on
December 22, 1994, and that together
with the correction page attached
hereto, noting changes in form or
substance, if any, it is true and

correct.
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DATE BRUCE DAVID JANIAK, M.D.

_— e eem  emm mm W e e Awe eem e

STATE OF OHIO )
COUNTY OF LUCAS )

I, Philip H. CGaines, a2 Notary Public in%
and for the State of Ohio, duly commissioned and
qualified, do hereby certify that the within-ndamed
witness, BRUCE DAVID JANIAK, M.D., was by me first'
duly sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth,
and nothing but the truth in the cause aforesald;
that the testimony then given by him was by me
recorded on audio cassette in the presence of
said witness, afterwards tramnscribsd upon a word
processor, and that the foregoing is a true and
accurate transcription of the testimony so given
by him as aforesald.

I do further certify that this depositicn
was taken at the time and place in the foregoing
caption specified and was completed without
adjournment.

I do further certify that I am not a
relative, counsel, or attorney of any party or.

otherwise interested in the event of this
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action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set
my hand and affixed my seal of office at Toledod,

Ohio, on this JiL day of January 3, 1985.

Dl B e

PHILIP H. GXINES
Notary Public

in and for the State of Ohlo.

My Commission expires February 1, 1898.
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